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VENUE: OAKLAND e 77
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, &\/
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CONSUELO PUENTE, aka CONNIE

PUENTE, YGH

DEFENDANT(S). “

INDICTMENT

18 U.S.C. § 1343 — Wire Fraud
18 U.S.C. § 1028A - Aggravated Identity Theft;
18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(1)(C) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c) — Fraud Forfeiture
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8 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT )" G e
9 NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
10 OAKLAN@ﬁSION 1 ~ 1 3 8
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) CASE NO.
12 )
Plaintiff, ) VIOLATIONS: 18 U.S.C.§ 1343 — Wire Fraud;
13 ) 18 U.S.C. § 1028A - Aggravated Identity Theft;
iy v. g 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(1)(C) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c) —
CONSUELO PUENTE, aka CONNIE y Fraud Forfeiture
15 || PUENTE,
; OAKLAND VENUE
16 Defendant. )
)
17
18 INDICTMENT
19 The Grand Jury charges:
20 Introductory Allegations
21 1. CONSUELO PUENTE, aka CONNIE PUENTE (hereinafter defendant PUENTE),
22 || resided in Sacramento, California, at all relevant times.
23 2. PUENTE was employed by a corporation (Company A) in Concord, California, from
24 || May 19, 2008, to June 18, 2013.
25 3. In January 2009, PUENTE was assigned to Company A’s payroll department.
26 4, Company A employed a payroll processing company to handle Company A’s payroll

27 || obligations with respect to its employees.

| 812
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5. PUENTE was Company A’s only employee responsible for handling payroll with the
payroll processing company. PUENTE was responsible for submitting the required payroll information
to the payroll processing company. That information included the employees’ means of identification
and wage information.

6. A “means of identification” includes any name or number that may be used, alone or in
conjunction with other information, to identify a specific individual, including a name, Social Security
number, or date of birth.

7. The direct deposit transactions identified below originated from Company A’s Wells
Fargo Bank account in California and were transmitted in interstate commerce over the wires through
the Federal Reserve Bank or the Clearing House Interbank Payments System in Texas, Virginia, New
Jersey, New York, or North Carolina.

COUNTS ONE THROUGH THREE: (18 U.S.C. § 1343 — Wire Fraud)

8. Paragraphs 1 through 7 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set
forth herein.

0. From on or about June 2009, to on or about June 18, 2013, within the Northern District of
California and elsewhere, the defendant,

CONSUELO PUENTE, aka CONNIE PUENTE,
having knowingly and intentionally devised and intending to devise a scheme and artifice to defraud the
Company A, and to obtain money by means of material false and fraudulent pretenses, representations,
and promises, and, for the purpose of executing such scheme and artifice to defraud, did transmit or
cause to be transmitted by means of wire communications in interstate commerce, certain signs, signals,
and writings.
THE SCHEME AND ARTIFICE

10. PUENTE obtained the means of identification of three former employees, K.H, M.G. and
E.V., of Company A from their personnel files.

11.  PUENTE, using the means of identification of the three former employees, changed their
status to current employees of Company A so that Company A would pay wages in their names although

they were not then employed by Company A, nor did they then perform any work or other services for

Indictment 2
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Company A.

12. PUENTE listed her bank account information as the bank account to receive wages paid
in the names of the three former employees.

13. PUENTE input false payroll information for the three former employees into Company
A’s payroll system, which caused Company A to erroneously transfer funds in the names of the former
employees into PUENTE’s bank account. As a result of PUENTE’s entry of false payroll information,
Company A erroneously transferred funds of $627,907.53 from 2009 through 2013.

14.  PUENTE, to account for the wages paid in the names of the former employees, prepared
and submitted IRS Forms W-2 for each of the former employees.

THE WIRE COMMUNICATIONS

On or about the dates listed below, for the purpose of executing the scheme described above,
defendant PUENTE transmitted and caused to be transmitted by means of wire communication in
interstate commerce the signals described below for each count, each transmission constituting a

separate count:

COUNT DATE WIRE COMMUNICATION

1 July 9, 2009 Electronically deposited a net wage
payment of $2,297.70 in the name of K.H.
from Company A’s Wells Fargo Bank
account to PUENTE’s U.S. Bank account
May 26, 2011 Electronically deposited a net wage
2 payment of $4,400.81 in the name of M.G.
from Company A’s Wells Fargo Bank
account to PUENTE’s Bank of America
account
3 May 10, 2012 Electronically deposited a net wage
payment of $6,786.88 in the name of E.V.
from Company A’s Wells Fargo Bank
account to PUENTE’s Bank of America
account

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section 1343.

COUNTS FOUR THROUGH SIX: (18 U.S.C. § 1028A — Aggravated Identity Theft)

15.  Paragraphs 1 and 14 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth

herein.

Indictment 3
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16. On or about the dates identified below, within the Northern District of California, the
defendant,
CONSUELO PUENTE, aka CONNIE PUENTE,
knowingly transferred, possessed and used without lawful authority a means of identification of another
person during and in relation to the felony offenses in this Indictment identified as related counts below,
that is, she knowingly transferred, possessed and used the names and Social Security numbers of actual
persons, listed by their initials below, while attempting to obtain the fraudulent wages by committing

wire fraud as described in the related counts listed below:

COUNT DATE OF OFFENSE INDIVIDUAL RELATED COUNT

4 July 7, 2009 : K.H. 1

5 May 24, 2011 M.G. 2

6 May 8, 2012 E.V. 3

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section 1028A.
FORFEITURE ALLEGATION: (18 U.S.C. §§ 981(a)(1)(C) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461)

17.  The allegations contained in Counts One through Three of this Indictment are re-alleged
and by this reference fully incorporated herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the
provisions of Title 18, United States Code, Section 981(a)(1)(C) and Title 28, United States Code,
Section 2461(c).

18.  Upon conviction of any of the offenses alleged in Counts One through Three of this
Indictment, the defendant,

CONSUELO PUENTE, aka CONNIE PUENTE,
shall forfeit to the United States of America pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section
981(a)(1)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(c), any property, real or personal, which
constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to the offense.

19.  If, as a result of any act or omission of the defendant, any of said property

a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

b) has been transferred or sold to or deposited with, a third person;

Indictment 4
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c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

d) has been substantially diminished in value; or
e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided without
difficulty;

the United States of America shall be entitled to forfeiture of substitute property pursuant to Title 21,

United States Code, Section § 853(p), as incorporated by Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(b)(1)

and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(c).

All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 981(a)(1)(C) and Title 28, United States

Code, Section 2461(c).

DATED: 3-18g-14

MELINDA HAAG
United States Attorney

7 fow o Mo
J.DOUGLAJ WILSON

Chief, Crlmmal Division

Approved as to Form

oty

THOMAS MOORE
Assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Tax Division
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United States District Court
Northern District of California

CRIMINAL COVER SHEET

Instructions: Effective January 3, 2012, this Criminal Cover Sheet must be completed and submitted, along with the
Defendant Information Form, for each new criminal case.

Case Name: - Case Number:
USA v. CONSUELO PUENTE, aka CONNIE PUENTE -

Total Number of Defendants: Is This Case Under Seal?

) 2.7 l l 8 or more I I Yes . No __D__

Does this case involve ONLY charges under 8 U.S.C. § 1325 and/or 1326?

No .

h

Yes

:

Venue (Per Crim. L.R. 18-1):

SF __E]_ OAK m SJ r—} EUR _D_ MON _D_

Is any defendant charged with a death-penalty-eligible crime? Assigned AUSA (Lead Attorney):
Yes l | No . THOMAS MOORE, Chief Tax
Is this a RICO Act gang case? Date Submitted:
Yes l | No . 3/18/14

Comments:
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Print Clear Form

July 2013




